
LANCASTER COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

Minutes

July 17, 2014

The regularly scheduled meeting of the Lancaster County Planning Commission 
was called to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Board meeting room of the Lancaster County 
Administration Building, Lancaster, Virginia.

Present were Tara Booth, Vice-Chair, Robert Smart, David Chupp, Steve 
Sorensen, Ty Brent and Glenn Pinn. David Jones was absent.

Also present were William R. Lee, Board of Supervisors Representative, Don 
Gill, Planning/Land Use Director, Charlie and Anne Costello, Nick Ferriter, Randy 
Moubray and others. 
           

Mrs. Booth asked if there were any corrections or additions to the minutes of the 
May 15, 2014 meeting.

Mr. Smart moved to approve the May 15, 2014 minutes as submitted. VOTE: 6-
0.

PUBLIC HEARING #1

APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF ZONING DISTRICT CLASSIFICATION-
ATLANTIC METAL PRODUCTS, INC (OWNER) AND RANDY L.

MOUBRAY (CONTRACT PURCHASER)

Mrs. Booth asked Mr. Gill to present the issue.

Mr. Gill stated that the issue was an application for change of zoning district 
classification from R-1, Residential, General to C-1, Commercial (Conditional) by 
Atlantic Metal Products, Inc., owner, and Randy L. Moubray, contract purchaser, for a 
6.35-acre parcel described as Tax Map #28-26D. He stated that the property is located at 
1740 Irvington Road.

Mr. Gill stated that the contract purchaser wishes to use the existing structures on 
this site as a satellite location to expand his current marine repair and welding business 
located in Kilmarnock, but cannot do so under the current R-1 zoning. He stated that as a 
result, the applicant seeks to rezone the parcel to C-1, Commercial. He stated that to help 
his request, he has also taken the list of permitted uses in the C-1 District and lined 
through the unwanted ones and has indicated that he will present a signed and notarized 

1



copy to the Board of Supervisors to formalize this conditional rezoning request. He stated
that the sale of the property is contingent upon a successful rezoning.

Mr. Gill stated that the property has been used in the past as the headquarters for 
One Whay Sanitation Company, which included underground septic storage tanks and a 
sewage treatment facility. He stated that the property was previously zoned A-2, 
Agricultural General and obtained the Special Exception required for underground 
storage of sewerage on March 30, 1995. He stated that, later that same year, the Board of 
Supervisors rezoned the parcel to R-1, Residential General as part of a mass rezoning of 
properties along Irvington Road which made this parcel’s sewage sanitation use 
authorized non-conforming since underground storage of sewerage was not a permitted 
use in the R-1 District. He stated that a similar sewage sanitation use would still be 
permitted on this parcel since it existed prior to the R-1 rezoning, but the proposed 
marine repair and welding would not, since that use is not a permitted use in the R-1 
District.

Mr. Gill stated that this rezoning request was considered reasonable and 
appropriate, as nearby parcels have business or commercial uses. He stated that the parcel
is adjacent to the Lewis General Repair Shop, which is also an authorized non-
conforming use on an R-1 parcel and adjacent to the County Refuse Site for the 
Kilmarnock area. He stated that it is located in close proximity to the Ransone’s Nursery 
and Maintenance Headquarters, which is an authorized non-conforming use on an A-2 
parcel. He stated that it is also located within a half mile of two commercial properties: 
another C-1 property located at the intersection of Weems Road and Irvington Road as 
well as a C-2, Commercial Limited property, which is the Nationwide Insurance Office. 
He stated that the King Carter Golf Course is located across Irvington Road from the 
proposed rezoning parcel.

Mr. Gill stated that the Comprehensive Plan suggests that commercial activity be 
located in or near the towns and in or near traditional village areas. He stated that this 
parcel is less than a mile from the Kilmarnock town limits and is adjacent to the county’s 
Primary Growth Area, the triangular shaped area between the three incorporated towns of
Kilmarnock, Irvington and White Stone.

Mr. Gill stated that this parcel has an existing entrance onto Irvington Road as 
well as existing driveways and parking suitable for the applicant’s business, which all 
meet zoning ordinance requirements, and that well and septic are obviously not a problem
on this site. He stated that the applicant intends to paint the existing structures and add 
landscaping to make the property more aesthetically pleasing. He stated that the parcel’s 
current owner, Atlantic Metal Products, Inc., which purchased the property in January 
2013, has submitted a brief letter supporting this rezoning request.

Mr. Gill stated that adjoining property owners had been notified and advertising 
conducted as required by law and to date, there had been no input from the public.

2



Mr. Smart stated that there are many non-conforming uses on parcels up and 
down Irvington Road and it appears that we are not adhering closely to the zoning. He 
asked why the parcel was zoned back to R-1, Residential.

Mr. Gill replied that the parcel was originally zoned A-2, Agricultural General, 
and it had the special exception for the septic and sewerage use. He stated that many 
parcels were rezoned to R-1 along Irvington Road and other major arteries in the County 
in the mid 1990’s.

Mr. Smart stated that was to encourage residential use along the main arteries.

Mr. Gill stated that he assumed that was why it had been done. He stated that it 
took place in 1995.

Mrs. Booth opened the public hearing.

Randy Moubray, the applicant, introduced himself to the Commission and asked 
if any of the members had questions of him.

Mr. Smart asked if the proffer had been delivered in writing.

Mr. Moubray replied that he had given Mr. Gill a brief narrative of his plans for 
the site and the list of permitted uses in the C-1 District with unwanted uses crossed out. 
He stated that he basically planned to clean the site up and give it more curb appeal.

Mr. Smart asked if he owned the lettering shop in Kilmarnock.

Mr. Moubray replied yes. He stated that what he plans to do on Irvington Road is 
an extension of the lettering shop and welding shop that he has in Kilmarnock.

Mr. Lee asked if the septic storage tanks were empty.

Mr. Moubray replied that Churchview Septic has purchased all of the equipment 
and pumped the tanks and they will be moving the equipment off of the parcel. He stated 
that the only thing left would be the drainfields, which he would use.

Mr. Smart stated that he was glad Mr. Moubray’s business was growing and that 
he needed the extra space.

Mr. Brent stated that he thought it would be an improvement of the parcel. He 
stated that it was nice to see a local business growing.

There was no other public comment.

Mrs. Booth closed the public hearing.

3



Mr. Smart made a motion to forward to the Board of Supervisors a 
recommendation for approval of the Change of Zoning Classification from R-1, 
Residential General to C-1, Commercial (Conditional) by Atlantic Metal Products, Inc., 
owner and Randy L. Moubray, contract purchaser for the 6.35-acre parcel described as 
Tax Map #28-26D, located at 1740 Irvington Road. VOTE: 5-0-1 (Mr. Brent 
abstained.)

DISCUSSION ITEM #1

ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE 10 – HISTORIC RESOURCES

Mrs. Booth asked Mr. Gill to present the issue.

Mr. Gill stated that since the initial discussion of this issue at the May meeting, 
new appointees have been made to the Historic Resources Commission and that body is 
at full capacity. He stated that it may be prudent for the Historic Resources Commission 
to review Article 10 as well, if not first, since that body is charged with administering that
Article of the Zoning Ordinance. He stated that a meeting is being scheduled for the 
Historic Resources Commission to reactivate and reorganize and Mr. Lee is the Board 
Representative to that Commission as well. He stated that they would have an issue to 
consider regarding renovations at a currently designated Historic Resource at the Edgely 
Farm off Courthouse Road. He stated that once the Historic Resources Commission 
reviews the ordinance, the Planning Commission would review it and consider revisions 
before forwarding it to the Board of Supervisors.

Mr. Gill stated that he had requested information from adjacent counties regarding
their treatment of historic resources. He stated that he is still in the gathering phase and 
would keep the Planning Commission aware of his progress. He stated that hopefully the 
Historic Resources Commission would be able to take the lead on revising the ordinance 
since they are responsible for its administration.

Mr. Smart stated that he thought it was a good thing that the Historic Resources 
Commission was back in business. He stated that since they are the ones that enforce 
Article 10, it would be good for them to take the first look at it. He stated that after 
reviewing both Lancaster’s ordinance and Northumberland’s ordinance, it seems that 
Lancaster is too heavy-handed for volunteer recruitment.

Mr. Gill agreed. He asked if the Commission had any specific suggestions. He 
stated that if he could put together a joint meeting of the Historic Resources Commission 
and the Planning Commission, he would do so.

Mr. Chupp stated that it seemed to him that in the past, the efforts had been 
directed at signing up whole communities like Morattico. He stated that he thought the 
County’s efforts should be directed at individual properties.

4



Mr. Gill stated that the purpose of the past community meetings was to try to get 
the information to citizens, so they could decide if they wanted to pursue it for their own 
individual properties.

Mr. Chupp asked what was overbearing about the current ordinance.

Mr. Gill replied that, in his opinion, it was too specific. He stated that in 
comparison to the Northumberland ordinance, it required a lot of standards that may not 
be necessary for the area.

Mr. Smart stated that some may have had experiences with homeowner’s 
associations and it sounds like it would be inviting a huge homeowner’s association onto 
your property. He stated that some painting is considered a substantial alteration 
according to Article 10.

Mr. Lee stated that it could put a burden on the homeowner.

Mr. Smart stated that if a person owns a historical property, they need to be 
trusted that they will do what is needed to retain the historical character.

Mr. Costello stated not necessarily. He stated that if a structure is changed or 
modernized, it is no longer a historic resource.

Mr. Smart stated that the state seemed to be more even handed than the County on
historic resources. He stated that he thought it would be a good idea for the Historic 
Resources Commission to look at Article 10 first.

ADJOURNMENT

The July 17, 2014 regular meeting of the Lancaster County Planning Commission
was adjourned at 7:30 p.m.

5


	Minutes
	July 17, 2014
	PUBLIC HEARING #1
	APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OF ZONING DISTRICT CLASSIFICATION-ATLANTIC METAL PRODUCTS, INC (OWNER) AND RANDY L. MOUBRAY (CONTRACT PURCHASER)
	DISCUSSION ITEM #1
	ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE 10 – HISTORIC RESOURCES

	ADJOURNMENT

